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DISTRICT OF NEVADA
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GREEN TREE SERVICING LLC CASE No0:2:15<v-00700GMN-GWF

=
N

Plaintiff, AMENDED STIPULATION AND ORDER
V. TO FILE FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
FOR QUIET TITLE

=
w

COLLEGIUM FUND LLC-SERIES 31TIERRA
DE LAS PALMAS OWNERS ASSOCIATION;
DOES 1 through 10, inclusive; ROES Business
Entities 1 through 10, inclusive; and all others w
claim interest in the subject property located at

LD E W i) il
I
TN

16 || 2220 Mediterranean Sea Avenue, NortsVegas,

Nevada 89031
17

Defendants

18

TIERRA DE LAS PALMAS OWNERS
19 || ASSOCIATION
20 Third-Party Plaintiff

V.

21

ABSOLUTE COLLECTION SERVICES, LLC
22 || A Nevada limited liability company
23 Third-Party Defendant
24
25 STIPULATION
26 It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and betv@&REBEEN TREE SERVICING LLC
27 || TIERRA DE LAS PALMAS OWNERS ASSOCIATION, and COLLEGIUM FUND LI-GERIES
28 || 31(collectively as the “Parties”py and through their respective counsels of record, that GREEN

1
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1 || TREE SERVICING LLCmay file theFirst AmendedComplaint attached to this Stipulation as
2 || Exhibit “1.”
3 The Partiesre stipuléing in the interest of judicial economy atiils Stipulation shall not be
4 || construed to prejudice amjaims or defenseasserted by the Parties in this action.
5 IT IS SO STIPULATED.
6 || DATED this 9" day of June, 2015. DATED this 9™ day of June, 2015.
7
8 || By:/g/ Colt B. Dodrill : By:/s/ Elizabeth B. L owell
Colt B. Dodrill, Esq. James W. PengillyEsq.
9 Nevada Bar No. 9000 Nevada Bar No. 6085
Yanxiong Li,Esq Elizabeth B. Lowell Esq.
10 \')‘V%/Egg i\%\‘lal\r(l\N/IX'leLSLOFZ Nevada Bar No. 8551
11 980 Kelly Johnson Drive, Suite 140 PENG”.‘LY LAW FlRM .
Las Vegas, NV 89119 1995 Village Center Circle, Suite 190
12 Attorneys forPlaintiff, Las Vegas, NV 89134
GREEN TREE SERVICINGLLC Attorneys forDefendant,
13 TIERRA DE LAS PALMAS OWNERS
ASSOCIATION

DATED this 9" day of June, 2015.

e =
o o

By:/s/ Paul R. Connaghan
Paul R. Connaghan, Esq.
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17 Nevada Bar No. 3229
18 Tara D. NewberryEsq
Nevada Bar No. 10696
CONNAGHAN NEWBERRY LAW
19
FIRM
20 7854 W. Sahara Ave.,
Las Vegas, NV 89117
21 Attorneys forDefendant
COLLEGIUM FUND LLC SERIES
ORDER
23
IT IS SO ORDERED.
24
. W
26 Gloriz@. Navarro, Chief Judge —
UnitedStates District Court
27 DATED: June 9, 2015
28
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EXHIBIT “1”

EXHIBIT “1”



COLT B. DODRILL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9000

WOLFE & WYMAN LLP

980 Kéelly Johnson Drive, Ste 140
LasVegas, NV 89119

Tel: (602) 953-0100

Fax: (602) 953-0101

cbdodrill @wolfewyman.com

Attorneysfor Plaintiff
GREEN TREE SERVICING LLC

UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
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DISTRICT OF NEVADA

B
R O

GREEN TREE SERVICING LLC, CASE NO.: 2:15<v-00700GMN-GWF

=
N

Plaintiff,
V. FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR
QUIET TITLE

=
w

COLLEGIUM FUND LLC-SERIES 31TIERRA
DE LAS PALMAS OWNERS ASSOCIATION;
DOES 1 through 10, inclusive; ROES Business
Entities 1 through 10nclusive; and all others wh
claim interest in the subject property located at

=
a1

e S Y
[
IS
O

16 || 2220 Mediterranean Sea Avenue, North Las Ve

Nevada 89031
17

Defendants.

18
19
20 GREEN TREESERVICINGLLC (“Green Tree”), by and through its counsel of record,
o1 Wolfe & Wyman LLP, hereby complains against Defendants as follows:
2 STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION
23 1. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331
o because Greefree’s claim arise under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United, States
- including but not limited to 11 U.S.C. 8§ 362, and because this claim challenges the congiijutiona
o6 of Nevada’'s HOA foreclosure statutes
- 2. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332
- because this claim is between diverse Defendants and the amount in controveidy excee
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$75,000.00.
3. This matter involves certain real estate locate2P@0 Mediterranean Sea Avenue,
North Las Vegas, Nevada @31 (“Subject Property”) and falls under the jurisdiction of this Court.
PARTIES
4, Green Tree is a limited liability company organized under the laws of Delandre
has a principal place of business in Minnes®a.Member is a resident of the state of Nevada.
5. Defendant, COLLEGIUM FUND LLESERIES 31 (COLLEGIUM”) is an entity

organized under the laws of Nevada and doing business in the state of Nevada. Uponamformati

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

and belief, no members GIOLLEGIUM are citizens of the state of Delaware.

=
o

6. Defendant TIERRA DE LAS PALMAS OWNERSASSOCIATION(*HOA) is a

[EY
=

Nevadanon-profit corporation with its principgllace of business ithe state of Nevada

=
N

7. Green Treas unaware of the true names and capacities, whether corporate,

=
w

individual, associate, or otherwise of the other Defendants, and therefore suesfieoskams by

fictitious namedDOE or ROE BUSINESS ENTITY WhenGreen Treascertains the identities and

=
a1

exact nature of such fictitious Defendants, it will seek leave of this Court todaitme Complaint to

=
()}

assert the true names thereupon

R L L
[
IS

17 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
18 8. This action centeraround the parties’ rights in that certain real property commonly
19 || described as 2220 Mediterranean Sea Avenue, North Las Vegas, Nevada 890324AF2N814-
20 || 003. The Subject Properitylegally described as follows
21 Lot Three (3) in Block Three (3) of Tierra De Las Palmas Village 6
Unit 1, as shown by Map thereof on file in Book 84 of Plats, Page 19,
22 in the Office of the County Recorder of Clark County, Nevada.
23 9. Green Treas informed believes, and thereon alleges that the Subject Property falls
24 || within the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions of the HOA.
25 || Green Tree’s Interest in the Property
26 10. In 2000, the Property was conveyed to Joseph P. Sauer and Cynthia A./Sauer.
27 || Grant, Bargm and SaldDeedevidencinghe conveyance was recordexh or about October 31,
28

1 Unless stated otherwise, all recorded documents referred to hereirea@ded in the
2
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2000 as Book and Instrument 20001031.011A%ue and correct copy of ti@rant, Bargain and
SaleDeed is attached d&sxhibit 1.
11. Green Trees informed and believes and then alleges that at all times relevant to

this actionJoseph P. Sauer and Cynthia A. Sauer was title owner of record of the SubjextyProps

1%

12. Green Tree is informed and believes and thereon alleges that on obabeuatber
21, 2009, Joseph P. Sauer and Cynthia A. Sauer entered into a mortgage loan transaction (“Suibje
Loan”) in which hey borrowed $96,950.00 from Bank of America, N(ABANA"), evidenced by a

Note and secured by a Deed of Trust encumbering the Subject Property reconéeafficiail

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

recrds of the Clark County Recorder on March 29, 2010 as Instrument Number 20100329000011+

=
o

(“SubjectDeed of Trust”). A true and correct copy of the Subj@xed of Trust is attached hereto

[EY
=

as Exhibit 2.

=
N

13.  On or about January 10, 2013, BANA assigned theestibjeed of Trust to Green

=
w

Tree. The Assignment of Deed of Trust was recorded in the official regbtigs Clark County

Recorder on January 18, 2013 as Instrument Number 201301180002720. A true and correct gopy

=
a1

the Assignment of Deed of Trust isaathed hereto as Exhibit 3.

=
()}

14.  Green Tree is current beneficiary of the Subject Deed of Trust and servicer of t

e S Y
[
IS

17 || Subject Loan.

18 || The HOA Foreclosure andCOLLEGIUM'’s Alleged Acquisition of the Property

19 15. TheSubjectProperty is subject to a Declaration of Covenants, Condi&ons

20 || Restrictionsof the HOA (the “CC&Rs”). The CC&Rs were recordaa or about June 27, 1995
21 || Book and Instrument Number 970627.00020true and correct copy ofe CC&Rsis attatied as
22 || Exhibit 4.

23 16.  On or about February 06, 2013, Joseph Sauer filed a Chapter 7 Bankruptcy Petitjon i
24 || the United States Bankruptcy Court, Eastern District of California. At that aimaytomatic stay
25 || was imposed by operation of law. A true and correct copy of the Court Docket fro8air’s
26 || Bankruptcy Case is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

27

28

official records of the Clark County Recorder.

3
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17. Inviolation of the automatic stay, on or about March 26, 2013, a Notice of
Delinquent Assessment Lien was recorded in the official records of tHe@Janty Recorder as
instrument number 2013032600024501true and correct copy dfie Lien for Delinquent
Assessmens attached as Exhibi

18. TheNotice of Delinquent Assessment Lieferred to irthe above paragraphcites
thatthe “Total amount due as of 3/22/22 - $827.85.”

19. Joseph Sauer’s Chapter 7 Bankruptcy casenetiterminated until May 31, 2013.

As the HOA did not obtain any relief from stay prior to this date, the Notice of Defihque

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

Assessment Lien was unlawful, void and invalid.

=
o

20. Relying on the void Notice of Delinquent Assessment Lien, a Notice of Defallt a

[EY
=

Election to Sell Under Homeowners Association Lien was recorded on or about July 24, 2@13 in th

=
N

official records of the Clark County Recorder as instrument number 201307240001988. A true anc

=
w

correct copy othe Lien for Delinquent Assessmesiattacled as Exhibit 7.

21. Relying on the void Notice of Delinquent Assessment Lien, a Notice of Treistee’

=
a1

Sale was recorded on or about November 04, 2013 in the official records of the Clark County

=
()}

Recorder as instrument number 201311040000888ue and correatopy ofthe Notice of

R L L
[
IS

17 || Trustee’s Salés attached as Exhibg

18 22.  The Notice ofTrustee’sSale identified irthe above gragraplrecitesthatthe “sale

19 || will be made ... to pay the remaining principal sum due under said Notice of Delincgssgsfment
20 || Line withinterest thereon, as provided in said notice, advances, if any, estimatetiéegss cand

21 || expenses of the Trustee;wadt: $2,896.61 Estimated Accrued interest and additional advances, if
22 || any, will increase this figure prior to sale.”

23 23.  None of the aforementioned notices identified above identified what portion of the
24 || claimed lien were for alleged late fees, interest, fines/violations, or colidets/costs

25 24.  None of the aforementioned notices identified above specified what portion of thg
26 || lien, if any,that the HOA claimed constituted'superpriority” lien.

27 25.  None of the aforementioned notices identified above specified whether the HOA was
28 || foreclosing on thesuperpriority” portion of its lien, if any, or under the non-sugererity portion

4
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of the lien

26. None of the aforementioned notices identified above pramgenotice of a right to
cure.

27. Relying on the void Notice of Delinquent Assessment Lae@prrective Foreclosure
Deed was recordeah or about February 14, 2014 as Baokl Instrument Number
201402140001211 recititgat COLLEGIUM had prevailed at an HOWen foreclosure sale
conducted on January 14, 20IPhe deed recitea sale price of $30,000.00. tAle and correct

copy of the deed is attached as Exhibit 9.

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

28. As Joseph Sauer’'s Chapter 7 Bankruptcy case was not terminated until May 31, RO1:

=
o

and as the HOA relied on a void Notice of Delinquent Assessment Lien when conductii@Ahe

[EY
=

sale, the HOA Sale was unlawful, void and invalid.

=
N

29. Green Treas informed and believes and thereon allegestlieaHOA Sale violated

=
w

the automatic bankruptcy stay provided by 11 U.S.C. § 362.

30. Upon information and belief, the HOA and its foreclosure agents did not cavitply

=
a1

all mailing and noticing requirements statedNiiR.S.116.31162 through N.R.S. 116.31168.

=
()}

31. Upon information and beliefhe HOA assessment lien and foreclosure notices

R L L
[
IS

17 || included improper fees and costs in the amount demanded.

18 32. The HOA Sale violated Green Trsaights to due process because it and its

19 || predecessors in interegere not given proper, adequate notice and the opportunity to cure the
20 || deficiency or default in the payment of the HBA&Issessments.

21 33. The HOA Sale was an invalid sale and could not have extinguGlesh Trees

22 || secured interest because of defects in the notices given, tbdBggen Tree or its predecessors in
23 || interest

24 34.  Without providingGreen Tree’s predecessors in intevesgh notice of the correct

25 || super-priority amount and a reasonable opportunity to satisfy that amount, incladaiyre to

26 || identify the supepriority amount and its failure to adequatdlscribe the deficiency in payment as
27 || required by Nevada law, the HO#foreclosure sale mommercially unreasonable and deprives
28 || Green Tree, its agents, loan servicers, anatgdecessors in interesttbeir right to due process.

5
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35.  Extinguishment othe Deed of Trust would depriv@reen Treef its right to due
process because the HOA included amounts in its sufmeity lien, such as fines, late fe@sterest,
dues, and costs of collection that are not allowed to be included in itspiguéy-lien, if any,
under Nevada law.

36.  Extinguishment othe Deed of Trust would depriv@reen Treef its right to due
process because the H@Ad/or its foreclosure agefailed to describe the deficienay payment as
required by Nevada law and failed to give Green Tree’s predecessors in interest, angbieas

opportunity to satisfy the superiority lien, if any.

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

37. The HOA assessment lien and foreclosure notices included costs of collection and

=
o

fees that are not permissihlader N.R.S. 116.3102 et seq.

[EY
=

38. The HOA Sale did not comply with N.R.S. 116.3102 et seq.

=
N

39.  Upon information and belief, at the time of the HOA Sale, the amount owed on the

=
w

Subject Loan exceedé&$2,000.00

40. Upon information and belief, at the time of the HOAeS#&he fair market value of the

=
a1

Property exceededl34,000.00.

=
()}

41.  The amount paid bOLLEGIUM at the HOA Saleupon informatiorand belief,

e S Y
[
IS

17 || wasapproximately$30,000.00.

18 42. The sale price at the HOA Sale is not commercially reasonable when compared to th
19 || debt owed tdsreen Treen theSubject Loan and the fair market value of the Property

20 43. The HOA Sale was invalid because it veasiducted in @ommerciallyunreasonable
21 || manner.

22 44. The HOA Sale by whiclCOLLEGIUM tookits interest was commercially

23 || unreasonable if it extinguish&treen Tree'Peed of Trust.

24 45.  The sales price tGOLLEGIUM, when compared to the outstanding balance of

25 || Green Tree’s Note and Deed of Trust and the fair market value of the Proparonstrates that the
26 || HOA Sale was not commercially reasoleabr conducted in good faith.

27 46. The HOA Sale is commercially unreasonable because the HOA and/or its$areclo
28 || agentfailed to describe the deficiency in payment as required by Nevada law anddajled t

6
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Green Treany reasonable opportunity to satisfy the syp&ity lien.

47. The HOA Sale was an invalid sale and could not have extinguistesh Trets
secured interest because it was not a commercially reasonable sale.

48. Because the CC&Rs contained a Mortgagee Protection Clause, and because Grgen
Treg its agents, loan servicers, and/or predecessors in interest were not gpamptice that the
HOA intended to foreclose on the super-priority portion of the dues o®iregn Treeits agents,
loan servicers, and/or predecessors in intenestnot onnoticeof the needo attend the HOA Sale

to protect thesecurity interesin the Subject Property.

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

49. Because the CC&Rs contained a Mortgagee Protection Clause, and because prqper

=
o

notice that the HOA intended to foreclose on the super-priority portion of the dues caampiv

[EY
=

given, prospective bidders, including Green Tree’s predecessors in interest, did aof@pihe

=
N

HOA Sale, making the HOA Sale commercially unreasonable.

=
w

50. COLLEGIUM andtheHOA knew thatGreen Treeand/or itspredecessors in interest

would rely on the Mortgagee Protection Clause contained in the recorded CC&Rs, artidnew

=
a1

lienholders and prospective purchasers would not know that the HOA was foreclosing en super

=
()}

priority amounts because of the failure of the HOA @sébreclosureagent to provide such notice.

R L L
[
IS

[ —
\I

The absence of Green Tigepredecessors in interest the HOA Sale allo@€@d LEGIUM to appear

=
[0 0]

at the HOA Salevithout competitiorand purchase the Property for a fractiont®market value,

19 || making the HOA Sale commerciallywreasonable.

20 51. COLLEGIUM and the HOA knew that prospective bidders would be less likely to
21 || attend the HOA Sale because the public at large believed that Green Tree’s prediecedsoest

22 || wereprotected under the Mortgagee Protection Clause in the CC&Rs of public rewbtdaathe

23 || public at large did not receive notice, constructive or actual, that the HOA weakBing on a

24 || super-priority portion of its lien because the HOA @sdoreclosure agentmproperly failed to

25 || provide such notice. The geral public’'s belief therefore was that a buyer at the HOA Sale woulg
26 || take title to the Property subjectttee SubjecDeed of Trust.This general belief resulted in the

27 || absence of prospective bidders at the HOA Sale, which all@@dd EGIUM to appear sthe HOA
28 || Sale and purchase the Property for a fraction of market value, making th&al®Aommercially

7
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1 || unreasonable.
2 52.  The circumstances of the HOA Sale of the Property breableddOA’sobligation
3 || of good faith under N.R.S. 116.1113 and their duty toraa commercially reasonable manner.
4 53. Green Trees informed and believes th@OLLEGIUM is aprofessional property
5 || purchaser.
6 54.  The circumstances of the HOA Sale of the PropertyGDHLEGIUM'’s status ag
7 || professional property purchaser preveDd@LLEGIUM from being deemed a bona fide purchaser
8 || for value
9 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
10 (Quiet Titleversus COLLEGIUM)
11 55.  Green Treencorporates by reference the allegations of all previous paragraphs, &

=
N

fully set forth herein.

=
w

56. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201 and N.R.S. 40.010, this Court has the power and

authority to declare Green Tree’s rights and interests in the Property iasolice the parties’

=
a1

adverse claims in the Property.

=
()}

57. COLLEGIUM claims an interest in the Property through a Corrective Foreclosure

e S Y
[
IS

17 || Deed recordd in the Clark County Recorder’s Office as Book and Instrument Number

18 || 201402140001211 which is adverse to Green Tree’s interest.

19 58. The HOA Sale could not have extinguished Green Tree’s secured interest for the|
20 || reasonset forth above in the Factual Allegats.

21 59. Green Tree'Peed of Trust is a first secured interest on the Property as intended

22 || N.R.S. 116.3116(2)(b).

23 60. As the currenbeneficiary under the Subject Deed of Trust and owner of the Note

24 || relating to the Subject Loan, Green Tree retained its first position stahesghdin of title for the

25 || Property after the HOA Sale.

26 61. Based on thadverseclaims being asserted by the parties, the parties are entitled {
27 || judicial determination regarding the rights and interests of the respectiies parthe cse.

28 62. Green Tree igntitledto a determination from this Court, pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

8

2010863.1



§ 2201 and N.R.S. 40.010, that Green Tree is the beneficiary of a first position Deed of Telist whi
still encumbers the Property.

63. Green Tree igntitledto a determinatin from this Court, pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 2201 and N.R.S. 40.010, that Green Tree’s secured interest by virtue of its Deed of Trust is
superior to the interest, if any, acquired by COLLEGIUM through the Foreel@seed.

64. Green Tree has beeequired to retain counsel to prosecute this action and is entitled
to recover reasonable attorney’s fees to prosecute this action

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

(Declaratory Relief versus all Defendants)
f

=
o

65. Green Tree incorporatéy reference the allegations of all previous paragraphs, as

[EY
=

fully set forth herein.

f

=
N

66. Green Tree incorporatéy reference the allegations of all previous paragraphs, as

=
w

fully set forth herein.

67. Pursuantto 28 U.S.C. § 2201, this Court has the power and authority to declare Gree

=
a1

Tree’s rights and ierests in the Property and to resolve the parties’ adverse claims in theyProper

=
()}

68. The Subject Deed of Trust is a first secured interest on the Property witogg isr

R L L
[
IS

[ —
\I

protected by N.R.S. 116.3116(2)(b).

=
[0 0]

69. As the currenbeneficiary under the Deed of Trust and owner of the Loan, Green

19 || Tree’s interest in the Property retained its first position status in the chigtie after the HOA Sale.
20 70. COLLEGIUM claims an interest in the Property through a Corrective Foreclosure
21 || Deed recorded in the Clark County Recorder’s Office as Book and Instrument Number

22 || 201402140001211 which is adverse to Green Tree’s interest.

23 71.  Green Tree igntitledto a judicial determination regarding the rights and interests of
24 || the respective parties to the case.

25 72.  Green Tree igntitledto a determination from this Court, pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

26 || 8§ 2201, that its secured interest by virtue of its Deed of Trust is superior to tlestinfany,

27 || acquired by COLLEGIUMhrough the Foreclosure Deed, or held or claimed by any other party.
28 73. Green Treis entitled to a declaration that the HOA Sale conducted by the HOA djd

9
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not affect or extinguiskereen Trets rights, status, legal relations and interest in the Property.
74. Inthealternative Green Treas entitled to a determination from this Court tte
HOA Sale was not a valid sale and conveyed no legitimate interest to COLLEGIUM
75. Green Tree has beeequired to retain counsel to prosecute this action and is entitled
to recover reasonable attorney’s fees to prosecute this action

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(Violation of Automatic Bankruptcy Stay)
f

76.  Green Tree incorporatéy reference the allegations of all previous paragraphs, as

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

fully set forth herein.

=
o

77. The HOA violated 11 U.S.C. 8§ 362 by noticing and conducting the HOA Sale during

[EY
=

the pendency of the automatic bankruptcy stay in effect durin@alrer’'sbankruptcy.

=
N

78. Because the HOA violated the automatic bankruptcy stay in recording Natides

=
w

conducting the HOA Sale during that stay, the HOA Sale is invalid and should belset asi

79. Inthe event the HO/Male is not set aside as invalid, Green Tree has been damaged

=
a1

by the HOA's violation of the automatic bankruptcy stay to the extent the HOAeSailguished

the First Deed of Trust.

N Y L
= =
o N

[ —
\I

80. Green Tree is entitled to damages in an amount according to proof.

=
[0 0]

81. It has been necessary for Green Tree to retain counsel in order to file this lawduit

19 || as aresult, Green Tree is entitled to its costs and a reasonable attorneys’ fee

20 FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

21 (Unconstitutional Statute versusall Defendants)

22 82. Green Treencorporates by reference the allegations of all previous paragraphs, as if
23 || fully set forth herein.

24 83.  This Court has the duty and jurisdiction to declare unconstitutional any law that

25 || violates a protected right.

26 84. Nevada’'s HOA foreclosure statutes violate the Due Process Clauses of HuaNev

27 || and United States Constitutions because the opt-in notice provisions do not mandatedhablea

28 || and affirmative steps be taken to give actual notice to lenders and other holdecsdddeecurity

10
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interests prior to a deprivation of their property rights.

85. Because the Statutes do not require the foreclosing party to take reas@pbte st
ensure that actual notice is provided to interested parties who are reasonatdynasber(unless
the interested party first requesistice) they do not comport with long standing principles of
constitutional due process.

86. As adirect and proximate result of the above, Nevada's HOA foreclosurestate
facially unconstitutional in violation of the Due Process Clauses of both thed 8tates and

Nevada Constitutions and should be stricken.

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

87. Green Treés entitled to a determination from this Court that because the HOA Sale

=
o

proceeded under an unconstitutional statute, it was not a valid sale, conveyed notéemiterest

[EY
=

to COLLEGIUM, and did not extinguis@reen Tres Deed of Trust.

=
N

88. Green Tredhas been required to retain counsel to prosecute this action and is entjtled

=
w

to recover reasonable attorney’s fees to prosecute this action.

Wherefore, Plaintiff Green Tree Servicing, LLE&ps for relief as follows:

) WOLFE & WYMAN LLP
[
IS

15 1. For a judgment determining that Nevada’s HOA foreclosure statutes akestas

16 || unconstitutional.

17 2. For a declaration and determination that the HOA Sale was invalid and conveyed no
18 || legitimate interest t&€ OLLEGIUM,;

19 3. For a judgmat quieting title and declaring that Green Tree’s Deed of Trust continjies
20 || to encumber the Property;

21 4. For a declaration and determination that Green Tree'’s interest is securexd gngain

22 || Subject Property, and that Green Tree’s first Deed of Trust was thag@zhed by the HOA Sale;

23 5. For a declaration and determination that Green Tree’s interest is supehier to t

24 || interest of COLLEGIUM and all other parties;

25 6. For a preliminary injunction th& OLLEGIUM, its successors, assigns, and agents

26 || are prohibited fronconducting any sale, transfer or encumbrance of the Property that is claimed to
27 || be superior to Green Tree’s Deed of Trust or not subject to that Deed of Trust;

28 7. For a preliminary injunction th& OLLEGIUM be required to pay all taxes,

11
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insurance and homeowner’s association dues and segregate and deposit with the Cawnttor a G
approved trust account over whiCl©®LLEGIUM has no control during the pendency of this action;

8. If it is determined that Green Tree’s Deed of Trust has been extinguishieel HOA
Sak, for special damages in the amount equal to the fair market value of the Profiegtyrgraid
balance of the Subject Loan, plus interest, at the time of the HOA Sale, whichgkeater;

9. For general and special damages;

10.  For costs incurred herein, including post-judgment costs;

11. For attorney’s fees; and

© 00O N o o &~ W N R

12.  For any and all further relief deemed appropriate by this Court.

DATED: June 9, 2015 WOLFE & WYMAN LLP
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By:/s/ Colt B. Dodrill
COLT B. DODRILL, ESQ
Nevada Bar No. 9000
980 Kelly Johnson Drive, Ste. 140
Las Vegas, NV 89119
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Attorneys for Plaintiff,
GREEN TREE SERVICING LLC
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